# INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS

INTEGRITI GATE KEEPER



Inner Range Pty Ltd ABN 26 007 103 933

1

1 Millennium Court, Knoxfield, Victoria 3180, Australia PO Box 9292, Scoresby, Victoria 3179, Australia Telephone: +61 3 9780 4300 Facsimile: +61 3 9753 3499 Email: <u>enquiries@innerrange.com</u> Web: <u>www.innerrange.com</u>



# **UPDATES AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:**

Check the Website regularly for:

- Additional Applications and Tables not included in this manual.
- Updates and/or changes to existing documents.
- New documents to be added to this manual.

Advanced Tech Support:

- <u>http://www.onlinetraining.innerrange.com/</u> (Restricted downloads)
- <u>http://www.onlinetraining.innerrange.com/login/signup.php</u> (Restricted account creation)
- <u>http://www.innerrange.com.au/support.php</u> (Support contacts)

#### Home Page:

<u>http://www.innerrange.com</u>

Please send or fax any comments regarding this manual to:

Support at the Head Office address. (See front cover) Or e-mail to: <u>Publications@innerrange.com</u>

#### Disclaimer:

- The manufacturer and/or its agents take no responsibility for any damage, financial loss or injury caused to any equipment, property or persons resulting from the correct or incorrect use of the Inner Range system and its peripherals. The purchaser assumes all responsibility in the use of the Inner Range system and its peripherals.
- Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of this manual, Inner Range Pty Ltd assumes no responsibility or liability for any errors or omissions. Due to ongoing development the contents of this manual are subject to change without notice.

2

# Integriti Gate Keeper

# **Table of Contents**

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHTS	4
INTEGRITI BASICS	6
LOGIN	6
USER INTERFACE	7
GUI LAYOUT	8
Ribbon Tab	
Ribbon	
Ribbon Group	9
Integriti Version	
Logged in operator	
Full screen view	
Docking Panel	
OPERATOR TASKS	
REVIEW	
SCHEMATIC MAPS	
CCTV CAMERAS	
PLAYBACK CONTROLS	20
LOGIN ERRORS	21
CUSTOMIZING LAYOUTS	22
Layouts	22

3

# **Product Highlights**

# Connectivity

- Simplified Controller Connectivity (only requires a single TCP port).
  - Improved NAT Traversal, far less firewall configuration required.
- Simple Automatic Discovery of controllers on local network.
- Integriti is a true multi-controller, multi-workstation system.
- Supports paths with automatic switching to redundant paths on link failure.
- Clustered Architecture: Support for multiple servers for scalability or high availability.

# Editing

- Changes to module programming take effect immediately, without a LAN secure.
- Unlimited number of granular permissions and credentials per user.
- Dynamic Update of all data. All changes are instantly reflected on other operator workstations, no need to refresh screens if someone else changes something.
- Programming structures, inputs and outputs for LAN modules are created automatically when they are connected to the LAN.
- Fully customizable user interface, allows any editor to be customized to suit customer needs.
- Multi-Select Edit. Set the properties of multiple records in a single operation, no need to manually apply the change to each record.
- Cross Reference: Graphically visualize the relationships between all entities in the system.
- Live LAN status of modules, zones and auxiliaries is displayed.
- Dynamically Filter and sort by any field on any entity.
- Dynamically Filter and sort by current state (inputs in alarm, doors that are unlocked).
- Selectively show or hide items based on:
  - o Name.
  - o LAN status (secured, missing, unexpected, not installed).
  - Programming status (blank, programmed, queued for upload/download).
  - Logical groupings: allow entities to be arranged and grouped with infinite flexibility.
- Support for multiple sites, with unlimited sub-sites.
- Window / docking panel placement customisation including layout saving and retrieval per operator.
- Single-click hyper-linking between forms.
- Automatic detection of edits made at any Terminal.
- User editing provides the following features:
  - Users can be exported. This allows an operator to make pre-set templates easily and observe how the import file format should appear.
  - Multiple Users can be selected for blanking records or exporting.

# Reports

- Comprehensive audit trail.
- Any filtered data grid can be exported right from within the System Designer.
- 3NF Normalized database, can be easily queried and reported on.

### Management

- Full support for offline editing.
- Comprehensive operator permissions system providing infinite flexibility.
- Hierarchical operator permissions allowing separate sites to be administered both individually and globally.
- Full support for Multi-Site and multi-tenancy.

# Control

- Remotely control areas, area lists, auxiliaries, auxiliary lists, doors, door lists, floors, floor lists, home auxiliaries and zone inputs.
- Per-User permissions are enforced for remote control from the software.

# **Integriti basics**

# Login

Operators are presented with a login dialog when they run Gate Keeper. To log in, simply enter your operator name and operator password then click the Login button. Operator credentials are defined within the Integriti management software.

	Integriti version	number.		
🦿 Log On to Integriti				2.5 . 5871
	Login Crede User Name Password Integriti Ser	entials		
	Server	localhost	Port	44000 Cancel
	- Integriti S - Log Ut	ervices. ility.		Figure 1
				Figure 1

Depending on the security policy, the Integriti services shown in Figure 1 may only visible when Gate Keeper is launched as an Administrator.

-

# **User Interface**



The document titled 'Interface elements for Integriti contains information on how to make good use of the user Interface.

# **GUI Layout**

Aome	🗇 Window 🛛 🖁 Users		Ribbon.		ې 🛴 ۵
Schematic Maps Data	Filters New Review Window Review A	Finalized Alerts lerts Entities	Modules	Mute.	
Schematic Maps (Showing	j 4) 🗖 무	<ul> <li>K Finalized Alerts (Showing 0)</li> </ul>	Alert View: Default Ale	t View; Showing 0 $\times$	<b>•</b>
📰 Open		🖉 Claim 🧇 Finalize 🔘	Un Mute 💢 Un Claim		Show Other Operators
T     Site       Y     Type here to seaQ	Name         Notes           Type here to Q         Type here to Q	Date / Time Created  Type here to search	Date / Time Updated Q Type here to search	•         Activations         Priority         state           Q         Q         Type here toQ         Type here to seaQ         state	State         Operato           Type here to seaQ         Type here
ABC Co. ABC Co. ABC Co.	Level 2 Level 1 Plant Room	king Panel.			÷
CCTV Cameras (Showing	5) $\Box$ $\mp$	Source     Period Recent History	Message Revie	ew Type 🔹 🔹 Review Level In	nner Range - De 🔻 👻
😑 Open		Your Local Time	Controller Text		Туре
T         Site           Y         Type here to seaQ	Name         Device         Notes           Type h.Q         Type h.Q         Type heQ	<ul> <li>▶ 16/04/2013 1:58:09 PM</li> <li>16/04/2013 1:58:09 PM</li> <li>16/04/2013 1:58:09 PM</li> </ul>	Mr Panel New Sm Mr Panel New Sm	hart Card license read: Option: 20 00 00 00 00 Time 5 hart Card license read: Option: 04 00 00 00 00 Time 3	5 SIM Card
ABC Co.     ABC Co.	PTZ Ca Fixed C	16/04/2013 1:58:08 PM	Mr Panel New Sm	hart Card license read: 0A 05 27 60 00 00 00 82 - 00.	SIM Card
ABC Co.     ABC Co.	Cam Integriti version.	16/04/2013 12:09:18 PM 16/04/2013 12:09:18 PM	Mr Panel Unknow Mr Panel Wiegand	d Site (Logged in operator.	User Access
ntegriti Client Version: 2.5.0.	.5871			Logged In as Installer (Connect	ted to 127.0.0.1:44000)

# **Ribbon Tab**

There are a total of 3 ribbons which are accessible by clicking on the appropriate ribbon tab. Each ribbon has a collection of items.

🛕 Home	Home
The ho	me tab contains all of the most commonly used items within Integriti edit.
🗇 Window	Window
The Wi	ndow tab groups layout sets and layout configuration settings.
🖁 Users	Users
The Us	ers tab contains user, card and RF remote configuration settings.
Ribbon	



Integriti makes use of ribbons to help reduce the amount of desktop space used and to help with finding things easier.

# **Ribbon Group**

(A)	The second se	-
Schematic Maps	CCTV Cameras	Filters
	Data	

Ribbon groups contain items that fall in to the same category. For example the 'Lists' ribbon group contains Door Lists, Area Lists and Auxiliary Lists.

**Integriti Version** 

Integriti Client Version: 1.0.0.2419

The Integriti version number is displayed in the bottom left-hand corner of the main window.

Logged in operator

Connected to 127.0.0.1:44000: Logged In as Installer

In addition to the client connection details, the name of the Logged in operator is displayed in the bottom right-hand corner of the main window.

#### Full screen view

Pressing [F11] at any time while running gate keeper will toggle in to full screen mode. When in full screen mode, the ribbon will disappear from view.



You can also enter full screen mode by clicking on the Screen button under the

🗇 Window tab.

Docking panels are displayed by clicking on the relevant ribbon item.

If a docking panel is already open, clicking on the ribbon item will bring the docking panel to the foreground.



For example, clicking the Maps button will display the schematic maps docking panel (*Figure 3*).

Each docking panel can be moved freely around the desktop or docked within the Gate Keeper application window. If you need to restore the layout to the factory default, click the Reset Layout button under the Window tab.



Figure 3

Docking panels can be one of two states:

Docked	The docking panel is bound to a window.
Floating	The docking panel has been detached from a window and can be moved freely around the desktop.

Clicking on the Docking Panel Pin will 'pin' the docking panel to the Integriti window.

- The docking panel pin in the upright position means the docking panel will remain visible within the window.
- The docking panel pin in the horizontal position means the docking panel will automatically hide when the docking panel no longer has focus.
- Review When a docking panel is hidden it will appear as small tab on the window edge it was closest to at the time the docking panel pin was clicked. Clicking on the tab or hovering the mouse over the tab will restore the docking panel until the user clicks elsewhere.

Docking panels that are not docked within the Integriti application window cannot be pinned.

# Moving docking panels

Docking panels can be relocated anywhere within the Integriti application window or on the desktop. To relocate a docking panel, click and drag the docking panel title bar.

Dragging the docking panel to the icons any of the following icons will bind the panel to the left, right top or bottom sides of the Integriti application window:



Dragging the docking panel to any of the icons in the centre of any other panel will bind the panel to the top, left, right or bottom of that panel or as an additional tab in a panel group:



A coloured highlight will indicate the placement of the panel if you were to release the mouse button.

# **Operator tasks**

Operat	or can click on the application button (	<b>.</b>	) to perform the following:
8	Change Password	]	

Will open the change operator password dialog.

Change the password of the current operator

Change Password			
	User Name	installer	
S	Old Password		
	New Password Confirm Password		
		OK Cancel	
e		Fi	oure



Will log the current operator out of Gate Keeper. The login dialog will appear once logged out.



Close Gate Keeper. This will not prompt the operator for confirmation.

# Review



A comprehensive review log is available by clicking on the Window button under the

At a glance, operators can see events as they take place (or history) and action them as required.



The review panel has a 'heat signature' feature which allows the operator to see the age of the displayed review events. The background colour of the review events in the first column 'Your Local Time' represents the age.

Prese	ent			Past
	Your Local Time	۳	Controller	Text
	21/11/2011 8:33:50 AM			Controller 'New Controller (PT000031)' disconnect
	21/11/2011 8:18:28 AM		New Controller (	Module UnSecured: Front Entry & Car Park
	21/11/2011 8:18:28 AM		New Controller (	Module Found: Front Entry & Car Park
	21/11/2011 8:03:16 AM		New Controller (	System Date/Time set to Nov 21 2011 08:02:50 U
	21/11/2011 8:03:16 AM		New Controller (	Timezone set to UTC+11:00 by Integriti 01 (Integ
	21/11/2011 8:03:16 AM		New Controller (	Comms Task 02 (Integriti) - Integriti Connected du
				Figure 6

The single greatest advantage of this feature is the ability to notice how review events are grouped without reading individual timestamps. *Figure 6* is a simple example of this feature.

	Your Local Time	۳	Controller	Text
	21/11/2011 9:58:06 AM		New Controller (	System Date/Time set to Nov 21 2011 09:58:36 U
	21/11/2011 9:58:06 AM		New Controller (	Timezone set to UTC+11:00 by Integriti 01 (Integ
	21/11/2011 9:58:05 AM		New Controller (	Comms Task 02 (Integriti) - Integriti Connected du
	21/11/2011 9:00:00 AM		New Controller (	Working Hours became Valid (TP00001)
>	21/11/2011 9:58:35 AM			Controller 'New Controller (PT000031)' connected

Figure 7

In the example above an older event has been placed in between newer events. This scenario can occur when communications to one or many controllers has been (re-)established or when review is sorted on a field other than time.

Review filtering and organisation occurs at the time the filter is applied.

# **Schematic Maps**

Schematic maps can be used to monitor and control facilities through a simple graphical user interface.



Clicking opens / displays the schematic maps panel (*Figure 8*). From there you can double-click any one of the listed maps to display them in a separate panel (*Figure 9*).

2	ichem	natic Maps (Showing 5) $\times$	
	:= C	Dpen	
	т	Name	
٩	Q	Type here to search	Q
۲	H	Му Мар	
	G	Campus	
	F	Building A	
	F	Building E	
	F	Building F	
			Fig



Clicking on a schematic map item will display its available commands and status summary.



Figure 10

A context menu with a list of the available commands is also available by right-clicking the schematic map item.



# **CCTV Cameras**



To control and view cameras, click on the button under the tab. The CCTV Cameras panel will display a list of all of the available cameras (*Figure 12*). Double-click on a camera to open a window for viewing live video (*Figure 13*).

CCTV Cameras (Showing 4) (1 Selected)								
🗐 Open								
	т	Name	Device Type	Notes				
۴	Q	Type here to search $Q$	Type here to search $Q$	Type here to search		Q		
۲	Ľ	PTZ Camera	Fixed Camera					
	R	Camera A	Fixed Camera					
	R	Camera B	Fixed Camera					
	R	Camera C	Fixed Camera					



Hovering your mouse over one of the control tabs at the bottom of the CCTV window will show one of the CCTV control bars below.

Playback Control				÷
	15/04/2013 4:39 PM 00:00 12	2:00 23:59	4 ■	
PTZ Control				中
		Zoom Focus Iri	s Preset	
Layout Control				-t
		1x1 2x2		

Figure 14

The CCTV control bar will enable the PTZ controls when the selected camera has been configured for CCTV. Depending on the capabilities of the camera and the video management system, certain PTZ controls may not function.

3 x 3

4 x 4

Clicking the directional arrows will pan / tilt the selected camera for the duration that the button is pressed.



Clicking the Preset button will send a command to move the camera to the pre-set number specified in the box just above it.

Clicking the button will put the selected camera view in to live mode. Clicking any of the other buttons in the playback controls area will change the view mode to playback.

# **Playback controls**

You can playback stored video from a particular date and time by clicking on the date time drop down.

					•				
		Thur	sday, 1	l 1 Octo	ber 2	2012			
٩			Octo	ber 20	12			۲	
	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Sun		
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21		1:
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28		in si
	29	30	31	1	2	3	4		
	Clear	r		ок		Car	ncel		12:00:00 AM

Figure 15

Once you have selected the date and time, click ok followed by the Go To Time button.



Play back archived video in reverse.



Pause archived video play back.



Play back archived video.



Rewind archived video.



Fast-forward archived video.



Move to start of archived video.



Stop archived video playback.



Move to end of archived video.

# Login errors

The most common login errors are:



Ensure the Integriti Application Server service is running.



Ensure you have the correct Operator username and password.

# **Customizing layouts**

The layout of the entire management suite can be customised and stored. Stored layouts include:

- Positioning of each individual docking panel.
- Its own layout set. Which includes:
  - Positioning of each individual dialog window.
  - o Content layout of each entity editor dialog window.

Layouts can be assigned to individual operators as required.

To customise an individual docking panel, open it and click the 📴 button.

Additional layout configuration settings are found under the *window* tab.

Pressing the **O** Reset Layout button will restore the entire layout back to the factory default settings.

Layouts

Layouts contain information about the panel(s) that are displayed and their position. Client workstations can be configured to automatically load a layout on start-up.



Click on the

button to open the layout manager.

	Layout Name 🔺	Active Layout	Load On Startup	Save On Exit	Application
Þ	Admin	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$		GateKeeper
	Default	$\bigcirc$	۲		System Designer
	Default	$\bigcirc$	۲	$\checkmark$	GateKeeper
	Guard	۲	0	$\checkmark$	GateKeeper

Each client can have its own layout that is loaded in start-up. To select the desired layout, click on the radio button in the 'Load On Startup' column to the right of the desired layout.

The active layout can be changed at any time by opening the layout manager and clicking on the radio button in the 'Active Layout' column to the right of the desired layout.

If the active layout has the 'Save On Exit' checkbox ticked, the layout will be saved when the Integriti software management suite is closed. Next time the layout is loaded, the layout will restore to the state it was in prior to Integriti closing.

Clicking the Save button will save the current layout to the layout that is currently active.

Clicking Save As... will allow you to save the current layout as a new layout. A dialog window will appear prompting the user to enter a name for the new layout.



Click on the

button to load a specific layout.

Load Layout	
Layout Name	<ul> <li>Layout Type</li> </ul>
Admin	Personal Layout
Default	Personal Layout
Guard	Personal Layout
HQ	System Layout
	OK Cancel

Figure 17

Click on the desired layout followed by 🧭 🔍

# Alerts

Alerts bring to the attention of one or many operators the change of state of one or many events.

Alerts are created and configured in the Integriti System Designer. Alerts are actioned within Integriti Gate Keeper.

Operators can claim an alert

	Alert View: My Alert View; Showing 2 ×							
🖉 Claim 🇳 Action 🧇 Force Finalize 💿 Un Mute 💢 Un Claim 🖉 Show Other Operat							v Other Operators	
	Date / Time Created	Date / Time Upda 🔻	Message	Activations	Outstanding	Prio •	State	Operator
	♥ Type here to search. Q	Type here to search $\!Q\!$	Type her $Q_{c}$	Type her $Q_{c}$	Type here to $Q_{\mathbf{x}}$	Type hQ	Type he $\mathbb{Q}$	Type here to sea $Q_{\!$
	4/02/2013 2:34:40 PM	4/02/2013 2:34:40 PM	Tamper	1	1	Priority 1	Claimed	Installer
	4/02/2013 2:34:33 PM	4/02/2013 2:34:33 PM	Tamper	1	1	Priority 1	Unclaimed	

Figure 18

# **Alert Definitions**

Alert Source Basic	Created	Retriggered	Claimed	Finalised	Claim Timeout	Finalise Tim	eout
Enabled							
Priority	[	Priority 1					-
Allow finalize without requesting response							
Response Plan	[					•	·×
Foreground Color	[	0, 0, 0, 0					•
Background Color		0, 0, 0, 0					•
Groups						>	<b>·</b> …
							Figure

# **Alert Views**

Alert Views are lists containing Alerts belonging to the groups specified within the Alert View.

#### To create a new Alert View...



- 1. Open the Views panel from the Administration tab.
- 2. Click the Contract New button to create a new Alert View.
- **3.** Give the new Alert View a name and enter a description in the notes field.
- **4.** Expand-out Settings and click on the  $\frac{1}{1000}$  to the right of groups.
- 5. In the window that appears, click on the Add button and select one or many Alert Groups from the list that appears.
- **6.** Click to confirm your selection. Click once more to go back to the Alert View editor window.
- **7.** Click **and** close the Alert View.

# **Response Plans**

Response Plans can be used as an alternative to the default Finalize Response window. Response Plan windows can contain custom text in the form of instructions, checklists, buttons, alert details, response history and operator response items.

For more information on the Response Plan layout manager, please refer to the document titled 'Interface Elements for Integriti'.

#### Add Instructions Box Item

Clicking this button adds an instruction box to the response plan.

Intrusion Event Instructions	
<ol> <li>Notify guard to patrol to investigate.</li> <li>Notify duty manager.</li> <li>Log patrols findings in response window.</li> </ol>	4
	-

Figure 20

There are two configurable options available: Instruction Text – Contains plain text Caption Text – This is an optional text label for the Instruction Box item.

# Add Checklist Steps Item

Clicking this button adds a Checklist item to the response plan. Checklist items can consist of checkboxes, combo boxes and text. Each checkbox/combo box/text has an optional 'Required For Finalize' attribute. Operators will not be able to finalize the alert until all of the items with 'Required For Finalize' set have been given a value by the operator.



4	🕨 Add 🛛 📟 Remove	Ту	ype of checklist item	]	
	Prompt	Туре	Option List	Required For Finalize	
۲	Notify guard on patrol to in	CheekBox			
	Notify duty manager	FreeText			
	Risk everity	ComboBox	Good OK; Avera		
	Displayed text	t	Custon	n combo box items	
				📀 ок	Cancel

Figure 22

#### To add an item to the checklist....

- 1. Click on Add to add a new row to the checklist.
- 2. Under the Prompt column, enter the name of the checklist item.
- **3.** Under the Type column, select Checkbox, Free Text or Combo Box from the list.
- 4. If Combo Box was selected...
  - a. Click on the 🛄 under the Option List to open the combo box items editor.
  - b. Click on 📥 Add to add a new item to the combo box.
  - c. Enter text in the box provided.
  - d. Repeat steps b-c as required.
  - e. Click or to go back to editing the checklist.
- **5.** If the operator is required to enter a value for this checklist item, tick the checkbox under the 'Required For Finalize' column.
- 6. Click to go back to the Response Plan editor.

# Add Button Item

Clicking this button adds a Button Item to the Response Plan. Response plan buttons can invoke any action in the section 'Action types'.



Figure 23

Button Image – Optional button image. Click the \cdots to open a .bmp, .gif, .jpg, .png or .ico. Button Text – Optional text displayed on the button Image Width – The width of the image in pixels Image Height – The Height of the image in pixels

# Add Alert Details View Item

The Alert Details View Item displays review history that is directly related to the alert.

Ale	rt Details		
	Time Generated	Message	*
٩	Type here to search Q	Type here to search Q	E
۲	8/02/2013 2:16:48 PM	Alarm Activated on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:50 PM	Alarm Restored on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:51 PM	Alarm Activated on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:52 PM	Alarm Restored on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:53 PM	Alarm Activated on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:54 PM	Alarm Restored on C01:Z11 by Are	
	8/02/2013 2:16:56 PM	Alarm Activated on C01:Z11 by Are	
			Ŧ

Figure 24

# Add Response History Item

The Response History Item displays information regarding the alert such as the creation time, who claimed it, what checklist items have been given values and what response text operators have added to the alert.

#### Response History

	Response Time	Message	Operator
٩	Type here to search $\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$	Type here to search Q	Type here to sea $Q_{c}$
۲	8/02/2013 2:16:49 PM	Alert was created	
	12/02/2013 11:45:00 AM	Operator Installer claimed the alert	Installer
	12/02/2013 11:45:03 AM	Operator Installer un-claimed the alert	Installer
	12/02/2013 11:45:05 AM	Operator Installer claimed the alert	Installer

Figure 25

#### Add Operator Response Item

Clicking this button adds an Operator Response Item to the Response Plan. Operators can add their own text to the alert. Clicking the Submit Response will add the text to the Response History.

Operator Response	
Found Ethan Hunt dangling in the middle of the server room.	*
Submit Response	

This page has been intentionally left blank